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The Acors Barns house, formerly the residence of one of New London's wealthy 
families, is now well-preserved as lav; offices. Although redevelopment has 
deprived the site of environmental continuity, the property itself retains 
sufficient physical integrity which, along with its successful adaptive use, makes 
it a worthwhile historic place. The house sits close to the street, yet its 
corner lot is filled, with trees and shrubs which set the house apart from the 
neighborhood} in addition, a low wrought-iron fence surrounds the property.

The house, though built in 1837, is in form similar to houses of the preceding 
century: a rectanguiar-plan, frame building, 2% stories tall, five bays wide, 
gable roof with ridgeline parallel to the main street and clapboarded exterior. The 
underpinning, as well as the entrance steps and the retaining wall which levels the 
house site, is of dressed granite laid as coursed ashlar. Four brick chimneys rise 
near the corners of the building. A large, pediment-shaped dormer, probably added 
in the late 19th century, projects at right angles from the main roof in the front; 
the dormer is lighted by a rectangular double window with 8/8 sash.

The front facade's principal feature is the main entrance, which shows Greek 
Revival inspiration in its flat-roofed portico* Fluted Doric columns rise directly 
from the top entrance step and support a heavy entabulature consisting of a plain 
architrave with simple transitional moldings, an unadorned frieze, a row of dentils, 
and a molded cornice. Behind the portico, the single-panel door is surrounded by 
sidelights and a transom of rectangular panes* Paneled pilasters stand behind the 
columns. The relative simplicity of this treatment is repeated again in the 
pilasters at the corners of the building, the simple window trim, and the main 
cornice, which is very heavy but even plainer than the portico's. Th« cornice outlines 
a pediment in the gables, which contain unusual windows in the form of a triangle. 
The triangle actually contains two windows, each of which opens to a separate room 
in the attic.

Across the rear of the building extends a one-story veranda. This open porch 
consists of a shallow hipped roof supported by square columns with a plain 
balustrade connecting them. The whole rests on square brick piers with a wood screen 
between them. Part of the veranda has been enclosed for more interior room, and 
the stairs which led to form®! gardens are no longer present. There is a side- 
lighted entrance from the center of the porch. The windows opening onto the porch 
are almost a full story high and have 6/9 sash,unlike the other windows which have 
6/6. A second-story projection has been added above the center of the porch; the 
elegance of the rear facade has been somewhat compromised by this modification and 
by the enclosure of part of the porch.

The interior presents a contrast with the stately but plain exterior. Based 
on a central hall plan, the lay-out of rooms has been retained in the present use. 
The hall, both downstairs and up, has an elaborately paneled ceiling* The offset 
stairway has rather elegantly turned balusters, turned and carved newels and plain 
rails; the whole is of a dark-stained wood which has the appearance of mahogony* 
One end of the upstairs hall is formed into an alcove by two slender fluted columns. 
The parlor rooms on the right side of the house are separated from each other only 
by^ a wide archway which, like the window casings, makes use of a shallow pediment 
arch. Sliding doors recede into the bookcases on either side of the arch. On the 
left side are two rooms with a connecting cupboard, apparently a dining room and 
a pantry. The latter has a dumbwaiter to the kitchen in the cellar below. On the
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second floor there are four chambers and in the attic, five small rooms. Through­ 
out the house the woodwork is well preserved, with finely molded interior 
cornices, baseboards and door and window casings. In the front rooms there are 
folding paneled shutters. A notable interior feature are the marble coal 
fireplaces, with round-arched opening, reverse curve mantel and sculptured 
central bracket. Like the hardwood floors, these fireplaces appear to be later 
modifications made by Barns or his son. They ore, however, fully in keeping 
with the overall tone of the house. Moreover, the present owner ho.s preserved 
the atmosphere of a substantial residence by using appropriate furnishings, 
such as period furniture, oriental rugs, suitable wallpaper, and Barns family 
portraits.



SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

—PREHISTORIC _ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC -.COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE _RELIGION

— 1400-1499 _ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION _LAW —SCIENCE

— 1500-1599 _AGRICULTURE _ECONOMICS _LITERATURE _SCULPTURE

_1600-1699 ^^ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN

— 1700-1799 _ART —ENGINEERING —MUSIC —THEATER

X1 800-1899 X-COMMERCE ^EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION

— 1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT —OTHER (SPECIFY)

	—INVENTION

SPECIFIC DATES 1p -57 v«,4n- BUILDER/ARCHITECT
JLO-Jj / "™* j-)Vl_LXT-

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Acors Barns house is an important artifact of New London's history because 
Barns and his family were representative of the city's merchant elite and their 
house provides some understanding of the lifestyle of this class. In addition to 
its value for social history, the house has considerable architectural interest, 
particularly because the present use of the building has preserved much of the 
interior intact.

Acors Barns (1794-1862) was the son of a mariner and lived first in Westerly, 
R.I. and Stonington, Connecticut, where he owned a merchant vessel. After moving 
to New London, he formed in 1827 a company with William Williams, Jr. This 
became one of the largest whaling firms in the city. After 1849, however, the 
whaling industry began a sharp decline, and the city of Mew London lost the basis 
of its prosperity. Barns was not personally affected by the decline of the port. 
Like many other New London merchants, he was able to reinvest his money elsewhere. 
After a brief involvement with the Willimantic and Palmer Railroad, Barns founded 
in 1852 the Bank of Commerce. His son and grandson succeeded him as president 
until 1902; thus Barns was able to provide amply not only for himself but for 
subsequent generations.

The Barns house, in the family until 1919, reflects the prosperous lifestyle 
of its owners. The house is thoroughly unpretentious from the street: it is 
rather traditional in design, with simply a surfoce application of the Greek 
Revival in the portico arid pilasters; only the corner chimneys suggest something 
out of the ordinary. This plain appearance is belied by the veranda across the 
back of the house arid the formal gardens which were once there. Further evidence 
of wealth is offered by the interior, with its elaborat.fr hall ceilings, detailed 
woodwork, and marble fireplaces. The contrast between the interior and exterior 
is intriguing. The age of conspicuous consumption had not yet arrived; perhaps 
Barns wanted to project an image of sober frugality, while at the same time 
providing for a comfortable home.

Moreover, the Barns house clearly reveals the dependence of the family on 
servants. In 1850, Barns employed two female servants, but it seems that more 
were required in later years. In the cellar can be seen the remains of the 
kitchen, wash room and wine cellar. On the ground floor, the dumbwaiter and the 
cupboard in the front room, and in the attic, the servants' plain cubicles are all 
reminders that gracious living was created by the domestic help. The Barns house 
physically documents the symbiosis by which the wealthy and the propertyless 
shared a home. Its value as an artifact is enhanced by the successful reuse 
which has retained the character of the buildincr.
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